
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


January 2, 2015


 4:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on January 2, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. in the


Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown


David Barlow


Pota Coston


Randy Ognio


Commissioner Absent: Charles Oddo


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator


Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk


Tameca P. White, Chief Deputy Clerk 


Dennis Davenport, County Attorney
_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order


Chairman Brown called the Friday, January 2, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 3:58 p.m.


Recognize Elected Officials in the Audience


Chairman Brown asked all the elected officials who were present to stand.  The audience then applauded the


elected officials.


Recognize Commissioner-Elect Coston’s Honored Guests


Chairman Brown recognized Commissioner-Elect Coston’s Honored Guests.  Those named included:


Pastor Walter and Beverly McDonald– Tallahassee, Florida


Walter McDonald III– Tallahassee, Florida


James and Gloria McDonald– Detroit, Michigan


Dr. Dion Nicole Barton– Chicago, Illinois


Harvey Maurice– Bloomfield, Connecticut


Sybil Smith– St. Louis, Missouri


Kay Jernigan– Wilmington, Delaware


Patty Smith– Fort Lauderdale, Florida



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #11







Minutes
January 2, 2015
Page Number 2


Betty Steward– Forsyth, Florida


James Rogers– Cincinnati, Ohio


Linda Joiner– Cincinnati, Ohio


Request show of hands for those dining after the meeting (5:30 p.m. at Broadway Diner.)


Chairman Brown asked the audience for a show of hands if they planned to attend dinner after the meeting at


Broadway Diner.  Approximately 50 people indicated they would attend dinner after the meeting.


Invocation by Commissioner-Elect Coston’s Father, Pastor Walter McDonald of Providence Baptist Church,
Tallahassee, Florida


Pastor Walter McDonald of Providence Baptist Church offered the Invocation.


Pledge of Allegiance led by Ms. Bella Brown, First Grader at Rising Star Montessori


Ms. Bella Bower led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


1) Introduction of Superior Court Judge Fletcher Sams.  
  Administration of Loyalty Oath, State of Georgia


Superior Court Judge Fletcher Sams administered the Loyalty Oath, State of Georgia for Commissioner-


Elect Pota Coston.


2) Introduction of Chief Superior Court Judge Christopher Edwards
  Administration of Official Oath of County Commissioner, State of Georgia


Chief Superior Court Judge Christopher Edwards administered the Official Oath of County Commissioner,


State of Georgia for Commissioner-Elect Pota Coston.


3) Remarks from Commissioner Pota Coston.


The following is a transcript of Commissioner Coston’s remarks:


Thank you Chairman Brown.


Thank you Honorable Chris Edwards, Chief Judge and the Honorable Fletcher Sams, Superior Court Judge


for swearing me in today.  Thank you so much.


I first want to thank God for this glorious day and the opportunity.  As well as my church family at Elizabeth


Baptist Church for their prayers and support.


I want to thank my husband Bernie and son, Bernard, for all their love and support.  I couldn’t have done it


without you.  My father and stepfather for all their prayers and I know my mom is up in heaven smiling. 


Thanks to my brother for his love and encouragement.







Minutes
January 2, 2015
Page Number 3


I want to thank the citizens in District Five for your enormous vote of confidence and support, and the many


supporters from Fayette County as a whole.  I would be remiss if I did not thank those around the state and


out of state who supported me.  To my countless volunteers and supporters who gave of their time and


resources, THANK YOU.  This includes my campaign manager, Erica Pines, and my Treasurer, Nona


Houston, who did a fantastic job.  There are too many people to call by name who helped me.  I am so


grateful and appreciative for your support.


Let me thank all the clergy who prayed with me, civic organizations, Fayette County Democratic Committee,


Fayette Democratic Women, the NAACP, Fayette Chamber of Commerce, all the Home Owner


Associations, the Georgia Association of Educators, the Atlanta North Georgia Labor Council, the New


Power PAC, Realtors Political Action Committee and all the sororities and fraternities.


I look forward to working with my fellow Commissioners and the staff.  I want to commend Allen McCarty for


his years of service to the county.  In addition, I want to thank all elected officials including State Senator


Valencia Seay, Representatives Virgil Fludd and Ronnie Mabra for their leadership, support, and


encouragement.


I look forward to serving my district and the citizens of Fayette County.  It is my desire for all citizens to


have an exceptional quality of life, where we can raise our children in world class schools, obtain gainful


employment, increase our home values, grow our economy, protect our environment, and have a safe


county.


We must provide more opportunities for our senior citizens and the return of our youth as the next


generation for the sustainability of Fayette County.


I will be a bridge builder to work collaboratively with my fellow commissioners, other elected officials and


the people of this county and state to make this the best place to live, work, and play.


I am honored and thankful to be your Commissioner and together, we will grow our economy and enhance


the quality of life for all citizens.


Working together, we will move Fayette County forward.


God bless Fayette County and God Bless America!  Thank you.


ADJOURNMENT


Chairman Brown adjourned the January 2, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting at 4:17 p.m.  The Board


did not vote or provide direction during this meeting.


Photographs with Commissioner Coston will immediately follow after adjournment.  (Photos will first be


taken with Commissioner Coston’s family and Judges Sams and Edwards, followed by the Board of


Commissioners, then all others who so desire.)







Minutes
January 2, 2015
Page Number 4


Commissioner Coston took pictures with many of those in attendance until approximately 5:00 p.m., after


which a dinner was held at Broadway Diner.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________


        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                  Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,


Georgia, held on the 22nd day of January 2015.


___________________________________


       Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk












MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


January 8, 2015


 4:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on January 8, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. in the


Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Charles Oddo, Chairman


Pota Coston, Vice Chair


David Barlow


Steve Brown


Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator


Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk


Tameca P. White, Chief Deputy Clerk 


Dennis Davenport, County Attorney


_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order 


County Attorney Dennis Davenport called the January 8, 2015 Board of Commissioner’s meeting to order at 7:02


p.m.


Invocation by Commissioner Brown


Commissioner Brown offered the Invocation.


Pledge of Allegiance


Chairman Oddo led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda


Commissioner Barlow moved to approve the Agenda as published.  Commissioner Coston seconded the motion. 


No discussion followed. The motion passed unanimously.



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #9







Minutes
January 8, 2015
Page Number 2


ORGANIZATIONAL SESSION:


1. Election of Board Chairman for the year 2015.


County Attorney Davenport opened the floor for nominations for Board Chairman for the year 2015.


Commissioner Ognio nominated Commissioner Brown for Board Chairman.  Commissioner Barlow


nominated Commissioner Oddo for Board Chairman.  There were no other nominations.


Commissioner Ognio moved to close the nominations.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No


discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


Commissioner Ognio moved to appoint Commissioner Brown as Board Chairman for the year 2015. 


Commissioner Brown seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion failed 2-3 with


Commissioners Oddo, Barlow, and Coston voting in opposition.


Commissioner Barlow moved to appoint Commissioner Oddo as Board Chairman for the year 2015. 


Commissioner Coston seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 3-2 with


Commissioners Brown and Ognio voting in opposition.


County Attorney Dennis Davenport acknowledged Commissioner Oddo as the Board Chairman for 2015


and turned the meeting over to Chairman Oddo.  Chairman Oddo thanked Commissioner Steve Brown for


his service to Fayette County as Chairman of the Board of Commissioners for the year 2013 and 2014.


2. Election of the Board Vice-Chairman for the year 2015.


Chairman Oddo asked for nominations for the Board Vice-Chair for the year 2015.  Commissioner Barlow


moved to appoint Commissioner Pota Coston as Vice-Chair for the year 2015.  Chairman Oddo seconded


the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 3-2 with Commissioners Brown and Ognio voting


in opposition.


PROCLAMATION /RECOGNITION:


3. Recognition of 2010 Starr's Mill High School graduate, Brooke Fletcher, for being crowned Miss
Georgia USA 2015.


The Board recognized Ms. Brooke Fletcher for being crowned Miss Georgia USA 2015.  Commissioner


Coston read a Certificate of Appreciation that was presented to Ms. Fletcher.  A copy of the request,


identified as “Attachment 1,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


4. Recognition of Ms. Johanna Nelson, a student of J.C. Booth Middle School, who is the winner of the
2014 Water Essay Contest.


The Board recognized Ms. Johanna Nelson as the winner of the 2014 Water Essay Contest.  Ms. Nelson


read her essay to the Board and the audience.  Commissioner Brown thanked Ms. Nelson and read a


certificate to Ms. Nelson for bringing attention to the importance of both water quality and quantity. A copy


of the request, identified as “Attachment 2,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Minutes
January 8, 2015
Page Number 3


PUBLIC HEARING:


There were no items for Public Hearing.


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Brown moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 5-10 as written.  Commissioners Ognio and Barlow


seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


5. Approval of authorization to sign checks combining any of the following two signatures for
transactions at or above $5,000.00: Chairman, Vice-Chairman, County Administrator.


6. Approval of authorization to sign checks for transactions in the amount of $4,999.99 or less:
Chairman, Vice-Chairman, County Administrator.


7. Approval of the Chairman, Vice-Chairman, and the County Administrator to execute contracts,
resolutions, agreements, and other documents approved by and on behalf of the Board of
Commissioners.


8. Approval of staff's request to accept a Major Repair and Renovation Grant, in the amount of
$1,251.13, for a paging system at the Fayette County Library and approval of $1,344 in matching
funds to be paid from the Library's 2015 operations budget for supplemental upgrades to the paging
system and authorization for the County Administrator to sign required documentation associated
with the grant.  A copy of request, identified as “Attachment 3,” follows these minutes and is made
an official part hereof.


9. Approval of a request from Fayette County's Clerk of Superior Court to amend and expand the
scope of the 'Court's Technology' Fund to include revenues received from GreenCourt Legal
Technologies, LLC, for the purpose of electronically filing court documents, as set forth in a
Memorandum of Understanding between the Clerk of Superior Court and the Council of Superior
Court Clerks of Georgia.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 4,” follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.


10. Approval of the 2015 Water Committee's Meeting Schedule.


OLD BUSINESS:


There were no items of Old Business.


NEW BUSINESS:


11. Appointment of the 2015 Fayette County Legislative Coordinator.


County Administrator Steve Rapson stated that he had served as Fayette County’s Legislative Coordinator


for the last two years, and that he was willing to remain Fayette County’s Legislative Coordinator with the


Board’s consent.







Minutes
January 8, 2015
Page Number 4


Commissioner Ognio moved to appoint County Administrator Steve Rapson as Fayette County’s Legislative


Coordinator for 2015.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion


passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 5,” follows these minutes and is


made an official part hereof.


12. Consideration of Resolution 2015-01:  Resolution of the Fayette County Commissioners Pledge to
Citizens and County Staff on Core Values and Beliefs.


Commissioner Coston provided background on Resolution 2013-01, and she recommended that the Board


adopt Resolution 2015-01 renewing the Board’s Core Values as pledged to the citizens.  She added that


the pledge had been enlarged and posted near the back wall.


Commissioner Coston moved to adopt Resolution 2015-01: Resolution of the Fayette County


Commissioners Pledge to Citizens and County Staff on Core Values and Beliefs.  Commissioner Barlow


seconded the motion.  


Commissioner Brown asked that the Resolution be amended to reflect that Charles Oddo as Chairman of


the Board.


Commissioner Coston moved to amend the motion to include Charles Oddo as Chairman and to recognize


Steve Brown as Commissioner.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The


motion passed unanimously. Copies of the request and Resolution 2015-01, identified as “Attachment 6,”


follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


13. Consideration and approval of the December 11, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes. 
Commissioner Coston was not present for this meeting.


Commissioner Brown moved to approve the December 11, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes. 


Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Terrence Williamson: Mr. Williamson thanked outgoing Chairman Steve Brown for his service and he asked
incoming Chairman Charles Oddo and Vice-Chair Pota Coston to do the business of the county.  Mr. Williamson


asked the Board to engage the City of Peachtree City in order to obtain a reciprocal agreement pertaining to golf cart


usage throughout the county.  Mr. Williamson also spoke about the long-standing issue with Lake Peachtree saying


that it appears that was some unspoken, gentleman’s agreement that was entered into between the City of


Peachtree City and Fayette County concerning the maintenance of the lake.  He stated that while that type of


agreement may have been fine in the past, that the way to conduct business is to enter into documented


Intergovernmental Agreements.  Mr. Williamson also asked the Board to reconsider its stance pertaining to District


Voting.  He stated there are other needs to spend money on other than the lawsuit.


Virgil Fludd: State Representative Virgil Fludd acknowledged the meeting as a particularly important meeting since,
for the first time in Fayette County’s history, an African-American was serving on the Board of Commissioners.  He


thanked the Board for its work for Fayette County, and he specifically thanked former Chairman Steve Brown for his


work.  Representative Fludd asked the Board to consider the visioning project that is on-going, and to consider


investments in Kenwood Park since it needs additional work.  Representative Fludd also asked the Board to no







Minutes
January 8, 2015
Page Number 5


longer appeal the District Voting case.  He acknowledged that this was issue was a bone of contention for a number


of years, and he said it had been a divisive issue.  He thought it would make sense to pause and no longer appeal. 


He stated that the November election pointed to the fact that there is a great team of Commissioners who will work


together, and he stated that Commissioner Coston would work for her constituents in District 5 and for Fayette


County in an admirable way.


Tom Waller: Mr. Waller spoke about the on-going construction of the West Fayetteville Bypass.  He stated that the
road is unfinished while the information provided is that the County is waiting for the State to pay for the completion


of the road into State Route 92.  He stated that now that the County has a Legislative Coordinator, the Board should


charge the Legislative Coordinator to look into when the State would do its part to complete the West Fayetteville


Bypass.  


Mike Coley: Mr. Coley stated that he lives in North Fayette County and that he moved to Fayette County about three
years ago.  He spoke about why he chose to move to Fayette County, and he stated that one reason he chose


Fayette County was because of the equal way Commissioners and School Board Members were chosen.  He stated


that he was dismayed to learn of the changes represented by District Voting since 4/5th of his voting rights were


being taken away.  He stated that he went door to door during explaining all of the qualities that caused him to move


to Fayette County to those in his neighborhood.  He said his neighbors largely have moved in from Fulton, Clayton,


and Henry Counties, and he said his neighbors all indicated to him that they came to the Fayette County since they


appreciated the same quality of life that Fayette County provides.  Mr. Coley said he then asked his neighbors why


they wanted to change the voting structure in Fayette County and, by doing so, becoming like the counties they left. 


Mr. Coley said his neighbors are often silent after he asks that question.  Mr. Coley stated that Fayette County is a


conservative county, and he spoke about how the NAACP has become an extension of the Democratic Party that


uses race to implement the Democratic Party’s agenda.  He thanked the County Commission for continuing to


pursuit equal representation for all Fayette County’s residents.  He also asked the Board to rebuff any attempts to


implement denser development, public transportation, or more government interference that all cost higher taxes. 


Mr. Coley added that when the terms “those people” only refer to the politics of the situation, namely the Democratic


Party, and it does not involve race.  He closed saying dividing people by race is not acceptable and does nothing but


create division.


Larry Younginer: Mr. Younginer said he subscribed to the theory that change is difficult but necessary, and he said
everything changes whether we like it or not.  He stated he recently read an article that stated throughout the country


there were 20 million more votes for Democratic Senators that were elected versus Republican Senators that were


elected.  He said the reason that the Republican Party has the majority is Washington is because each state elected


its own senators, since senators are not elected on a national basis.  Mr. Younginer stated that group elections do


not work at the federal, state, or county levels.  He stated that a perfect example was sitting on the Board before him


since the Board now has a non-white man sitting on it.  He stated that the Board has never had a non-white man


serve on the Board.  He indicated that now that the county has District Voting that the elections will reflect those who


represent the people.  He stated that there was not a need to vote for a black person just because it is the Fifth


District, but rather that the people would vote for a good person because there is a Fifth District.  He asked the


Board not to step back.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Update on Lake Peachtree: County Administrator Steve Rapson reported that Lake Peachtree was recently
reclassified as a Category II status, and that the reclassification entailed a really good financial impact.  He stated


that the gentleman’s agreement that was referred to was actually a fifty-year contract.  He stated that is it because







Minutes
January 8, 2015
Page Number 6


there is a fifty-year contract that Fayette County is required to dreg Lake Peachtree.  Mr. Rapson stated that Lake


Peachtree is owned by the City of Peachtree City and that it is not a county reservoir.  He said the agreement is that


the county has to dredge the lake every seven to ten years.  He stated that the County has already requested the


Land Disturbance Permit that will give the County the ability to start dredging the dirt out of the lake.  He stated that


letters have also already been sent to the Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) since the County would


have to access State Route 54 in order to dredge the lake.  He stated that the submittals were on track for next


week, and that the bids were opened earlier in the day for the dredging project.  He stated that staff was evaluating


the bids and would bring them to the January 22, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting for Board approval.  Mr.


Rapson reported that the spillway still has to be repaired.  He said meetings will be set up with Peachtree City with


the goal of repairing the spillway in parallel with dredging the lake so that Lake Peachtree could be refilled in May


2015.


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


Notice of Executive Session: County Attorney Dennis Davenport reported that he had two items of Pending
Litigation, two items of Real Estate, and approval of two sets of Executive Session Minutes for discussion and review


in Executive Session.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner Barlow: Commissioner Barlow thanked Commissioner Brown for his service over the years.  He
also welcomed Chairman Oddo for being the newly elected Chairman of the Board.  He also welcomed Vice-Chair


Coston to her new position on the Board of Commissioners.


Commissioner Brown: Commissioner Brown congratulated the new Chairman and Vice-Chair.  He stated that it
was an absolute privilege to serve as Chairman for the past two years, and he thanked the Board for giving him that


privilege.  He stated the he would still work on various issues, just not in the Chairman’s capacity.  Commissioner


Brown stated that the District Voting lawsuit was never about Commissioner Coston, and he said he holds


Commissioner Coston in the highest esteem.  He stated that on a previous Board he had to fight to get


Commissioner Coston on the Ethics Board.  He said he reached out to Ms. Dawn Oparah who helped him find


Commissioner Coston.  He said there was a fight to get her on the Ethics Board.  Commissioner Brown stated that


now the entire Ethics Board is made up of African-American people, and that configuration is the first that has ever


happened on any board, authority, or committee in Fayette County.  He welcomed Commissioner Coston to the


Board.  Commissioner Brown asked everyone who lives in unincorporated Fayette County and who owns a golf cart


to register their cart with Fayette County in the month of January.  He stated if they are not registered in January


then they will be in violation.  Commissioner Brown stated that decals are given for the golf carts for law enforcement


purposes.  


Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio welcomed Commissioner Coston to the Board, and he congratulated
Chairman Brown and Vice Chair Coston to their new positions on the Board.  He also wished everyone a Happy


New Year.


Commissioner Coston: Commissioner Coston wished everyone a Happy New Year.  She thanked Commissioner
Brown for his service as Chairman, and she congratulated Chairman Oddo for his new position.  Commissioner


Coston said she looked forward to serving as Vice Chair and working with the Commissioners in order to make


Fayette County the best place to live in the State of Georgia.







Minutes
January 8, 2015
Page Number 7


Chairman Oddo: Chairman Oddo thanked Commissioner Brown.  He said the change was not directed toward him. 
He stated that Commissioner Brown does not have as much energy as the Energizer Bunny, and he did not


anticipate Commissioner Brown would slow down.  Chairman Oddo said he would look to Commissioner Brown for


support in an effort to get things accomplished.  He said there were many things he wanted to do with Commissioner


Brown’s help, and he again thanked Commissioner Brown for his service.  Chairman Oddo congratulated Vice-Chair


Coston, and he said there was a good team in the County.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


Pending Litigation, Real Estate, and Executive Session Minutes: Commissioner moved to recess into Executive
Session.  Commissioner Barlow moved to recess into Executive Session.  Commissioner Coston seconded the


motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board recessed into Executive Session at 7:47 p.m. and returned to Official Session 8:48 p.m.


Executive Session Affidavit: Commissioner Ognio moved to exit Executive Session and for the Chairman to sign
the Executive Session Affidavit.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion


passed unanimously.  A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit, identified as “Attachment 7,” follows these minutes


and is made an official part hereof.


November 13, 2014 Executive Session Minutes: Commissioner Ognio moved to approve the Executive Session
Minutes for November 13, 2014 Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion


passed unanimously.


December 11, 2014 Executive Session Minutes: Commissioner Ognio moved to approve the Executive Session
Minutes for December 11, 2014.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion


passed unanimously.


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner Ognio moved to adjourn the January 8, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner


Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The January 8, 2015 Board of Commissioner’s meeting was adjourned at 8:49 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________


        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                  Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,


Georgia, held on the 22nd day of January 2015.


___________________________________


       Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
















AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


January 22, 2015
 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order 
Invocation by Commissioner David Barlow
Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda


PROCLAMATION /RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of the 2014 All-County Volleyball Team.


2. Recognition of the 2014 All-County Softball Team.


3. Recognition of Library Assistant Sharon Campbell as winner of the Team
Player Award.


4. Presentation by Fayette County's auditing firm, Nichols, Cauley &
Associates, LLC, of the results of the Fiscal Year 2014 annual audit.


PUBLIC HEARING:


5. Public Hearing of Petition No. 1242-14, Earl W. Johnson, Owner, Rick
Sewell, Agent, request to rezone 8.18 acres from A-R to R-70 to develop a
Single-Family Residential Subdivision, with said property being located in
Land Lot 254 of the 5th District and fronting on South Kite Lake Road, with
one (1) condition.


6. Public Hearing on staff's request to adopt Resolution 2015-02 pertaining to
the "Fayette County 2014 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees,
including Comprehensive Plan Amendments for Updates to the Capital
Improvements Element and Short-Term Work Program (FY2015- FY2019)"
and transmit the document to the Atlanta Regional Commission and the
Department of Community Affairs.


CONSENT AGENDA:


7. Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2015-01, amending
the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 104- Development
Regulations, as amended, specifically Article VIII. Off-Street Parking and
Service Requirements.


8. Approval of the Juvenile Court’s request to accept a grant in the amount of
$72,000.00  that has been awarded to Fayette County, and authorization for
the Chairman to sign all required documents.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Charles Oddo, Chairman
Pota Coston, Vice Chair


David Barlow
Steve Brown
Randy Ognio


i


STAFF


Steve Rapson, County Manager
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney


Floyd Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
January 22, 2015
Page Number 2


9. Approval of the January 8, 2015 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


NEW BUSINESS:


10. Consideration of staff's recommendation to award Bid #922- Lake Peachtree Dredging, to low-bidder
Massana Construction, Inc., in the amount of $1,449,140.00, and to authorize the County Administrator to
sign any associated documents related to this request.


11. Approval of the January, 2, 2015 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.  Chairman Oddo was not
present for this meeting.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


ADJOURNMENT:








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Board of Commissioners Commissioner Steve Brown


Recognition of the 2014 All-County Softball Team.


The All-County Softball Team is comprised of players from high school softball teams at McIntosh, Starr's Mill, Sandy Creek, Lady of 


Mercy and Whitewater High Schools.  Among a number of awesome players is Whitewater's Hannah Thomason who was named the 


Batter of the Year and Starr's Mill's Alysen Febrey who was named Pitcher of the Year.   


 


Players for the 2014 All-County Softball team are named to either first, second or honorable mentioned teams. 


 


Players from each school are expected to attend the meeting.


Recognition of the 2014 All-County Softball Team.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


January 22, 2015 Proclamation/Recognition



fjones

Typewritten Text

Proclamation/Recognition #2












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Board of Commissioners Commissioner Steve Brown


Recognition of the 2014 All-County Volleyball Team.


The All-County Volleyball Team is comprised of volleyball team players from McIntosh, Starr's Mill, Sandy Creek, Lady of Mercy and 


Whitewater High Schools.  The Player of the Year for 2014 is Alexis Broadwater of Sandy Creek.   


 


Players for the All-County teams are named as either first team, second team or honorable mentioned. 


 


Players from each team are expected to attend the meeting. 


Recognition of the 2014 All-County Volleyball Team.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


January 22, 2015 Proclamation/Recognition



fjones

Typewritten Text

Proclamation/Recognition #1












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Board of Commissioners Commissioner David Barlow


Recognition of Library Assistant Sharon Campbell as winner of the Team Player Award.


Commissioner David Barlow introduced the Team Player Award for Fayette County employees in December 2013.  The Team Player 


Award is designed to motivate, recognize, and reward outstanding performance and dedicated service as a representative of Fayette 


County.  Nominees are submitted by any Department Head of Fayette County at the consent of the employee's direct Department Head.  


All nominees should demonstrate above average performance in the following areas: 


 


1)  Constantly evaluating what his/her department is trying to achieve. 


2)  Flexible-  can change course as the situation dictates. 


3)  Understands what we all make mistakes and works together to correct mistakes  rather than expose them. 


4)  Understands that not all goals will be accomplished and can prioritize work efforts to accomplish as many achieveable goals as      


possible. 


5)  Maintains a positive attitude, REGARDLESS. 


6)  A consistent spirit of teamwork and cooperation modeled by respectful treatment of others. 


7)  Willingness to make commitments and keep promises in pursuit of team goals. 


8)  Demonstrates interest and concern for other team members and team objectives.


Recognition of Library Assistant Sharon Campbell as winner of the Team Player Award.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


The Team Player Award is an initiative started and maintained by Commissioner David Barlow.


Thursday, January 22, 2015 Proclamation/Recognition



fjones

Typewritten Text

Proclamation/Recognition #3







Employee Recognition 


 
Nomination Form 


 


I HAVE SUFFIECIENT KNOWLEDGE OF MY NOMINEE AND THEIR PERFORMANCE TO VERIFY THAT S/HE MEETS 


ALL THE CRITERIA OUTLINED IN THE ATTACHED TEAM PLAYER NOMINATION CRITERIA FORM. 


 


 


I hereby submit this nomination for the following employee to receive the TEAM PLAYER award recognition.  I 


understand that only endorsements from a Department Head will be considered for this nomination. 


                                                       Sharon Campbell    Library  Assistant 


Name of Nominated Employee: _________________________ Title: ___________________ 


                                                                      Library 


Department of Nominated Employee:  ______________________________________________ 


 


Describe how the employee has met the general TEAM PLAYER criteria and why you believe the employee 


deserves the award. 


 


 Sharon is genuinely a team player who is extremely committed to her job as a library assistant and is 


constantly and consistently going above the call of her written responsibilities for her job title. If the restrooms 


need refreshing during the course of the day before the cleaning service comes at night, Sharon checks daily 


to assure that the restrooms are presentable for our patrons. Her respect for the coworkers is always gentle 


and kind. Sharon never displays undesirable activity that causes disruption in the workplace.  She is the go- to- 


player for our library because of her solid judgment and brilliant attention to details.   In addition to 


performing her assigned duties, she troubleshoots for PINES, prepares requisition for supplies and materials 


for the library, prepares and turns in daily deposit reports to the finance department, and is secretary for the 


Library Board.  Sharon performs confidential administrative duties ( Kronos- Time sheet) for the library 


director including assuming directions or oversight over other department personnel in distributing directives 


and monitoring programmatic activities. Sharon makes a difference in our work place for always being flexible, 


trustworthy, understanding and respectful. 


Cite specific incidents that relate to the TEAM PLAYER criteria.  (Attach additional sheet if needed) 


Once we were in need of a lectern for our stage and didn’t like any of what we saw from vendors. - Two weeks 


later, Sharon came to the library with her husband and he had built a beautiful lectern for the meeting room 


and donated it to library. This generous act of team playing shows that good team players share.   She is an 


active participant in all aspects of the job. Sharon deserves this award because she in inspiring and committed 


to caring about her team  for their  upward thrust toward excellence! 


 


 


 


       Chris Snell   Director 


Name of Individual Submitting Nomination: _________________________  Title: ___________ 







 


Department of Individual Submitting Nomination:  ____________________________________ 


 


Signature of Individual Submitting Nomination:  _______________________________________ 


 


Nominating Individual’s Department Head Endorsement: 


 


__________________________________________________   Date:  _____________________ 


 


Please submit form to Steve Rapson, County Administrator 





		Commissioners- Team Player Award Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Team Player Award Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Finance Chief Financial Officer Mary S Parrott


Presentation by Fayette County's auditing firm, Nichols, Cauley & Associates, LLC, of the results of the Fiscal Year 2014 annual audit.


Nichols, Cauley & Associates, LLC has completed the independent audit of the County's accounting records for the 2014 fiscal year.  


The firm will be presenting the results of the audit to the Board of Commissioners.  


 


The firm will present their findings, via PowerPoint, during the meeting.


No action is requested from the Board.  This presentation is for informational purposes.


Not Applicable.


Yes Annually


Yes No


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, January 22, 2015



fjones

Typewritten Text

Proclamation/Recognition #4












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Juvenile Court Katie Cunningham


Approval of the Juvenile Court's request to accept a grant in the amount of $72,000.00  that has been awarded to Fayette County, and 


authorization for the Chairman to sign all required documents.


The Criminal Justice Coordinating Council has awarded Fayette County $72,000.00 for the Juvenile Justice Center Delinquency and 


Prevention Treatment Program.  The purpose of this grant is to expand evidence based services to a larger population of youth who are 


determined to be "low risk" based on the Department of Juvenile Justice's Pre-Disposition Risk Assessment (PDRA.)  This offering is 


being made to address the need for prevention activities for at-risk youth in our community who are in the initial stages of justice system 


involvement. 


 


Approval of this grant will allow Fayette County to serve 18 to 24 youth and their families with the Strengthening Families Program.  


Strengthening Families Program is an evidence-based prevention program for parents and children ages 12 through 16 which will be 


used for youth who score a low risk on the PDRA.  SFP consists of parenting skills, adolescent life skills, and family skills training.  SFP is 


found to significantly reduce problem behaviors, delinquency, and alcohol and drug abuse in youth and to improve social competencies 


and school performance. 


 


No matching funds are required for acceptance of this grant.


Approval of the Juvenile Court's request to accept a grant in the amount of $72,000.00  that has been awarded to Fayette County, and 


authorization for the Chairman to sign all required documents.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, January 22, 2015 Consent



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #8





























































		Juvenile Court- CJCC Grant Agenda Request File

		Juvenile Court- CJCC Grant Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Planning and Zoning Director Pete Frisina


Public Hearing on staff's request to adopt Resolution 2015-02 pertaining to the "Fayette County 2014 Annual Report on Fire Services 


Impact Fees, including Comprehensive Plan Amendments for Updates to the Capital Improvements Element and Short-Term Work 


Program (FY2015- FY2019)" and transmit the document to the Atlanta Regional Commission and the Department of Community Affairs.


Fayette County and the towns of Tyrone, Brooks, and Woolsey, in accordance with the Georgia Development Impact Fee Act and the 


Minimum Planning Standards, have prepared the "Fayette County 2014 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees (FY2014), including 


the Comprehensive Plan amendments for updates to the Capital Improvements Element and Short-Term Program (FY2015 - FY2019)". 


This annual update was prepared in accordance with requirements of the Georgia Development Impact Fee Act and the Minimum 


Planning Standards and Procedures for Local Comprehensive Planning established by the Georgia Planning Act of 1989. 


 


This annual update was prepared in accordance with requirements of the Georgia Development Impact Fee Act and the Minimum 


Planning Standards and Procedures for Local Comprehensive Planning established by the Georgia Planning Act of 1989. 


 


The Atlanta Regional Commission and the Department of Community Affairs will coordinate the Regional and State review prior to final 


adoption.


Approval of staff's request to adopt Resolution 2015 - 02 pertaining to the "Fayette County 2014 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact 


Fees, including Comprehensive Plan Amendments for Updates to the Capital Improvements Element and Short-Term Work Program 


(FY2015 - FY2019), and to transmit the document to the Atlanta Regional Commission and the Department of Community Affairs for 


coordination of Regional and State review prior to adoption.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, January 22, 2015 Public Hearing



fjones

Typewritten Text

Public Hearing #6







TRANSMITTAL RESOLUTION 2015-02


 


 


WHEREAS, Fayette County, Georgia has prepared an annual update to a  


Capital Improvements Element and Short Term Work Program; and 


 


WHEREAS, the annual update of the Capital Improvements Element and Short 


Term Work Program was prepared in accordance with the Development Impact 


Fee Compliance Requirements and the Minimum Planning Standards and 


Procedures for Local Comprehensive Planning established by the Georgia 


Planning Act of 1989, and a Public Hearing was held on January 22, 2015. 


 


BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED, that Fayette County, Georgia does hereby 


submit the annual update of the Capital Improvements Element and Short Term 


Work Program covering the five-year period of FY 2015 to FY 2019 to the 


Atlanta Regional Commission and Georgia Department of Community Affairs for 


regional review, as per the requirements of the Georgia Planning 


Act of 1989. 


 


 


Adopted this     22nd day of January, 2015                                        


 


 


BY: 


 


 


_______________________________________________________ 


 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


________________________________________________________ 


 


 







1 
 


Fayette County and Towns of Brooks, Tyrone and Woolsey Summary Impact Fee Financial Report  
 FY 2014 


 Fire Services 


Total Impact Fee Balance From Previous Fiscal Year $0.00 


Impact Fees Collected in FY 2014 By Jurisdiction  


   Fayette County $107,665.86 


   Brooks $4,203.99 


   Tyrone  $15,014.25 


   Woolsey $0.00 


Total $126,884.10 


Accrued Interest  $167.15 


(Administrative/Other Costs) ($3,695.18) 


(Impact Fee Refunds) $0.00 


(Impact Fee Expenditures) ($123,356.07) 


Impact Fee Fund Balance Ending FY 2014 $0.00 


   


Impact Fees Encumbered $0.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







2 
 


Fayette County Impact Fee Financial Report - FY 2014 
Public Facility Fire Services 


Impact Fee Balance From Previous Fiscal Year  $0.00


Impact Fees Collected in FY 2014 $107,665.86


     Accrued Interest  $141.83


   (Administrative/Other Costs) ($3,135.50)


    (Impact Fee Refunds) $0.00


   ( Impact Fee Expenditures) ($104,672.19)


 Impact Fee Fund Balance Ending FY 2014 $0.00


 


 Impact Fees Encumbered $0.00


  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







3 
 


Fayette	County	Comprehensive	Plan	Amendment	‐	Capital	Improvement	Element	‐	Project	Update	FY	2015	–	FY	2019	
Public Facility: Fire Services 


Project Description 


Project 
Start 
Date 


Project 
End 
Date 


Estimated or 
Actual Cost 
of Project 


Funding 
From Impact 


Fees 


Percent 
by 


Impact 
Fees 


Other 
Funding 
Sources 


FY2014 


Impact 
Fees 


Applied 


Impact 
Fees 


Applied in 
Prior Years 


Remaining 
Amount to be 


Paid from  
Impact Fees   


Status/ 
Remarks 


Construct FS1, SR279 


FY02 FY02 $872,836  $471,331 54% 


Fire Tax 


 ‘n.a. $471,331 $0.00 Comp, FY02 


Construct FS10: Seay Rd FY 02 FY02 $838,295 $687,402 82% Fire Tax ‘n.a. $687,402 $0.00 Comp, FY02 


Construct FS5: S.R. 85 S. 


FY02 FY03 $1,191,565  $369,385 31% 


 


Fire Tax ‘n.a. $369,385 $0.00 Comp, FY03  
Construct FS7: Hampton Road FY03 FY03 $1,066,472  $586,559 55% Fire Tax ‘n.a $586,559   $0.00 Comp, FY03 


Purchase Acreage for Future Fire 
Station: McElroy Road FY04 FY04 $25,000 $25,000 100% None ‘n.a $25,000 $0.00 Comp, FY04  


Purchase Two (2) Quints FY06 FY07 $675,000  $675,000 100% None $123,356 $169,396 $382,248 Purchased FY07 


Emergency Operations Center * 


FY12 FY15 $150,000 


: 


$124,500 83% Fire Tax ‘n.a. $0.00 $124,500 In Process 


Construct  Fire Training Center 
(Burn Building) ** FY13 FY15 $65,000 $14,950 23% Fire Tax ‘n.a. $0.00 $14,950 Approved FY13 


Totals   $4,884,168 $2,954,127   $123,356 $2,309,073 $521,698  


 
 
* There was a change in scope for this project. Also a grant of $950,000 as additional funding was acquired. The $150,000 noted above is County funding/ costs above the 
$950,000 grant award amount. 
 
** There was a change in scope within this project. Latest estimates for project costs are $65,000. 
 
 
 
 







4 
 


 
 
 
 
 


Brooks Impact Fee Financial Report - FY 2014 
Public Facility Fire Services 


Impact Fee Balance From Previous Fiscal Year $0.00


Impact Fees Collected in FY 2014 $4,203.99


     Accrued Interest  $5.54


   (Administrative/Other Costs) ($122.43)


    (Impact Fee Refunds) $0.00


   ( Impact Fee Expenditures) ($4,087.10)


 Impact Fee Fund Balance Ending FY 2014 $0.00


 


 Impact Fees Encumbered $0.00


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







5 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Tyrone Impact Fee Financial Report - FY 2014 


Public Facility Fire Services 


Impact Fee Balance From Previous Fiscal Year $0.00


Impact Fees Collected in FY 2014 $15,014.25


    Accrued Interest  $19.78


     (Administrative/Other Costs) ($437.25)


     (Impact Fee Refunds) $0.00


     (Impact Fee Expenditures) ($14,596.78)


  Impact Fee Fund Balance Ending FY 2014 $0.00


  Impact Fees Encumbered $0.00


  Impact Fee Fund Balance Ending FY 2014 $0.00


  Impact Fees Encumbered $0.00
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







6 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Woolsey	Impact	Fee	Financial	Report	‐	FY	2014	
 Public Facility Fire Services 


Impact Fee Balance From Previous Fiscal Year $0.00


Impact Fees Collected in FY 2014 $0.00


Accrued Interest   $0.00


(Administrative/Other Costs) $0.00


(Impact Fee Refunds) $0.00


(Impact Fee Expenditures) $0.00


Impact Fee Fund Balance Ending FY 2014 $0.00


 


Impact Fees Encumbered $0.00
 







- 1 - 


FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 


SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY2015- FY2019 
 


 


This section presents an updated five-year work program for FY 2015 through FY 2019 to implement the vision and goals of the Fayette County 


Comprehensive Plan.  In addition to the scheduling of projects for the county, the Short Term Work Program indicates potential sources of funding.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







- 2 - 


 
 


FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 


SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY2015-FY2019 - PUBLIC SAFETY 
 
Goal: Maintain and Improve the Level of Service for Public Safety                                                            Plan Element: Community Facilities 


 
 


Project Description 


 
Initiation Year 


 
Completion 


Year 


 
Total 


Estimated Costs 


 
 


Funding Sources 


 
 


Responsibility 


Fire and Emergency Services      


Severe Weather Warning System FY 2015 FY 2016 $133,000 General Fund  Fayette County 


Emergency 


Services 


Fire Station Renovations FY 2015 FY 2016 100,000 Fire Fund Fayette County 


Emergency 


Services 


SCBA – Breathing Equipment FUTURE FUTURE $2,000,000 Fire Fund Fayette County 


Emergency 


Services 


Replace Fire Station 2 FUTURE FUTURE $2,000,000 Fire Fund Fayette County 


Emergency 


Services 


Addition/Renovation of  Fire Station 11 FUTURE FUTURE $300,000 Fire Fund Fayette County 


Emergency 


Services 
 
Sheriff’s Office 


 
 


    


 
Old Jail Renovation  


FY 2015 FY 2016 $1,861,500 


 


General Fund Sheriff’s Office 







- 3 - 


 
FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 


SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY2015-FY2019 – GOVERNMENTAL SERVICES 
 
Goal: Provide Support for Effective and Efficient Delivery of Governmental Services                                                            Plan Element: Community Facilities 


 
 


Project Description 


 
Initiation Year 


 
Completion 


Year 


 
Total 


Estimated Costs 


 
 


Funding Sources 


 
 


Responsibility 


Information Systems      


Aerial Photography FY2015 FY2019 $235,000 General Fund Information 


Systems 


 
 


FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 


SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY2014-FY2018 RECREATION 


 
Goal: Upgrade Recreation Services                                                                                                               Plan Element: Community Facilities 


 
 


Project Description 


 
Initiation 


Year 


 
Completion 


Year 


 
Total 


Estimated Costs 


 
 


Funding Sources 


 
 


Responsibility 


Kenwood Park Enhancements FY 2015 FY 2017 $500,000 General Fund Fayette County 


Recreation Dept. 


Kiwanis Park Enhancements FY 2015 FY 2019 $450,000 General Fund Fayette County 


Recreation Dept. 


McCurry Park Enhancements FY 2014 FY 2019 $1,375,000   


 


General Fund Fayette County 


Recreation Dept. 


      







- 4 - 


FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 


SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY2015-FY2019 RECREATION 


 
Goal: Upgrade Recreation Services                                                                                                               Plan Element: Community Facilities 


Multi-Purpose Trails FUTURE FUTURE $100,000 General Fund Fayette County  


Recreation Dept. 


Land Acquisition FUTURE FUTURE $500,000 General Fund Fayette County  


Recreation Dept. 


 
 


FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 


SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY2015-FY2019 -  WATER SYSTEM 
 
Goal: Upgrade County Water System                                                                                                     Plan Element: Community Facilities 
 


 


Project Description 


 
Initiation 


Year 


 
Completion 


Year 


 
Total 


Estimated Costs 


 
 


Funding Sources 


 
 


Responsibility 


Water Tank Construction at  


Horseman=s Run Site 


FUTURE FUTURE $2,000,000 G.E.F.A. Loan Fayette County 


Water System 


Water Tank Construction at Porter Road Site  FUTURE FUTURE $2,000,000 G.E.F.A. Loan 
 


Fayette County 


Water System 


Porter Rd. Line Extension FUTURE FUTURE $2,000,000 G.E.F.A. Loan   Fayette County  


 Water System 


Hwy 74 Pressure Improvements     FY2018     FY2019 $1,250,000 G.E.F.A. Loan   Fayette County  


  Water System 


 


 


 







- 5 - 


 
 


FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 


SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY2015-FY2019 - PUBLIC WORKS 
 
Goal: Maintain and Improve County Road System                                                                                 Plan Element: Community Facilities 
 


 


Project Description 


 
Initiation Year 


 
Completion 


Year 


 
Total 


Estimated 


Costs 


 
 


Funding 


Sources 


 
 


Responsibility 


Quail Hollow Subdivision Full Depth 


Recycling 


FY2015 FY2015 297,800 General Fund Fayette County Public 


Works 


Redwine Road & Starrs Mill Multi-Use 


Path 


FY2014 FY2016 
 


$959,000 
 


General Fund & 


Federal Grant 


Fayette County Public 


Works 


   
  


 


 


 


  







- 6 - 


 
FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 


SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY2015-FY2019 – PLANNING AND ZONING  
 
Goal: Growth and development should be consistent with the county comprehensive plan.                  Plan Element: Land Use Plan 
 


 


Project Description 


 
Initiation 


Year 


 
Completion 


Year 


 
Total 


Estimated 


Costs 


 
 


Funding 


Sources 


 
 


Responsibility 


Major Update of Fayette County Comprehensive  


Plan 


 
FY 2015 


 
FY 2017 


Staff  


Time 


General  


Fund 


Fayette County  


Planning and 


Zoning  


Department 


This is a specific activity addressing an Area Requiring 


Special Attention - SR 54 Nonresidential Corridor and an 


Assessment of Consistency with Quality Community 


Objectives- Regional Identity, Appropriate Businesses, 


Employment Options, and Educational Opportunities: 


Continue the joint study of the SR 54 Nonresidential 


Corridor with the City of Fayetteville. Issue will be 


addressed in the major update of the Comprehensive Plan. 


 
FY 2015 


 
FY 2017 


 
Staff Time 


 
General 


Fund 


 
Fayette County 


Planning and 


Zoning 


Department 


and Fayetteville 


Planning and 


Zoning 


  







- 7 - 


 
FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 


SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY2015-FY2019 PLANNING AND ZONING 
 


 
Goal: Growth and development should be consistent with the county comprehensive plan.                  Plan Element: Land Use Plan 


 
 


Project Description 


 
Initiation 


Year 


 
Completion 


Year 


 
Total 


Estimated 


Costs 


 
 


Funding 


Sources 


 
 


Responsibility 


 
This is a specific activity addressing an 


Assessment of Consistency with Quality 


Community Objectives- Alternative 


Transportation: Conduct multi-use path study 


for Redwine Road. Issue will be addressed in the 


major update of the Comprehensive Plan. 


 
FY 2015 


 
FY 2017 


 
Staff Time 


 
General 


Fund 


 
Fayette County Planning and 


Zoning Department, Fayette 


County Public Works, 


Fayette County Department 


of Recreation, and Sheriff’s 


Office 
 
This is a specific activity addressing an 


Assessment of Consistency with Quality 


Community Objectives- Alternative 


Transportation: Conduct multi-use path study 


for SR 54 to connect Fayetteville and Peachtree 


City to Hospital Area. Issue will be addressed in 


the major update of the Comprehensive Plan. 


 
FY 2015 


 
FY 2017 


 
Staff Time 


 
General 


Fund 


 
Fayette County Planning and 


Zoning Department, Fayette 


County Public Works, 


Fayette County Department 


of Recreation, and Sheriff’s 


Office 


 





		Planning and Zoning- Impact Fee Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Impact Fees Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Planning and Zoning Director Pete Frisina


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2015-01, amending the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 104- 


Development Regulations, as amended, specifically Article VIII. Off-Street Parking and Service Requirements.


On April 24, 2014, the Board of Commissioners adopted Ordinance 2014-07 enacting a new County Code entitled "The Code of Fayette 


County, Georgia."  This action codified 79 county ordinances that had not gone through the codification process since June 2007, and the 


codification process took over one year to complete.   


 


During the codification process, Section 8-255-Number of Parking Spaces was mistakenly deleted after Municode indicated conflicts 


parking requirements in the Zoning Ordinance.  Furthermore, the recodification process renumbered many of the sections- including the 


section currently under consideration.  Specifically, the old code section was renumbered from Section 8-255 to Section 104-221.     


 


The Red-Lined version of this supporting documents (see Exhibit A) provides minor amendments to the conflicts indicated by Municode.  


 


Exhibit B provides the final form of Ordinance 2015-01.


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2015-01, amending the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 104- 


Development Regulations, as amended, specifically Article VIII. Off-Street Parking and Service Requirements.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, January 22, 2015 Consent



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #7







 


Sec. 104-221.  Number of Parking Spaces.  In order to assure a proper and uniform 


development of public parking areas throughout the area of jurisdiction of this Ordinance, to 


relieve traffic congestion on the streets, and to minimize any detrimental effects on adjacent 


properties, off-street parking spaces shall be provided and maintained as called for in the 


following schedule; the requirements shall be the same as a similar use as mentioned herein.  


Parking requirements for additions to existing uses shall be based upon the new addition even if 


the existing use is deficient. 


 


 


(1) Apartment Duplex or Multi-Family Dwelling 
 


Two (2) Three (3) spaces for each dwelling unit plus 0.25 guest parking spaces 


per unit for all dwelling units with common parking areas, plus any required 


spaces for recreation areas, sales office, etc. as required by the Zoning Ordinance. 


 


 (2) Assembly, Public (including Auditorium and Stage Theater): 
 


  One (1) space for every 200 square feet in the main assembly room. 


 


(3) Athletic Field: 
 


One (1) space for every four (4) bleacher seats or thirty (30) spaces per field, 


whichever is greater. 


 


(4) Automobile Sales and Repairs:  
 


Three (3) spaces for every service area within the garage, or  one (1) space for 


every service employee, whichever is greater. 
 


(5) Bowling Alley: 
 


Four (4) spaces per alley, plus requirements for any other use associated with the 


establishment such as a restaurant, etc. 


 


(6) Care Home: 
 


One (1) space for every four (4) beds, plus one (1) space for every employee. 


 


(7) Car Wash (Principal Use): 
 


  One (1) space for every 250 square feet. 


 


(8) Church, Temple, or Place of Worship: 
 


One (1) space for every 150 square feet of gross occupiable floor area.   


(Amended October 25, 2001) 


 


(9) Club or Lodge: 
 


One (1) space for every 200 square feet of assembly area. 


 


Exhibit A- Red-Line VersionExhibit A- Red-Line VersionExhibit A- Red-Line VersionExhibit A- Red-Line VersionExhibit A- Red-Line Version







(10) Combined Uses: 
 


Parking spaces shall be the total of the spaces required for each separate use 


established by this schedule. 


 


(11) Dance School: 
 


One (1) space for every employee plus one (1) space for every 150 square feet of 


gross floor area, plus safe and convenient loading and unloading of students. 


 


(12) Developed Residential Recreational/Amenity Areas: 
 


a. One (1) space for every 250 square feet of clubhouse, pool house, 


pavilion, and swimming pool water surface area; and 
 


b. Two (2) spaces for every other amenity provided (including but not 


limited to tennis, volleyball, basketball, and playgrounds). 


 


(13) Dry Cleaning/Laundry Plant: 
 


One (1) space for every 10,000 square feet of gross floor area, plus one (1) space 


for every employee. 


 


(14) Entertainment, Indoor (except bowling alleys): 
 


One (1) space for every 250 square feet of floor area devoted to patron use. 


 


(15) Entertainment, Outdoor: 
 


10 spaces for every acre. 


 


(16) Fraternity or Sorority: 
 


One (1) parking space for every two (2) residents and one (1) space for every two 


(2) employees. 







(17) Funeral Parlor: 
 


One (1) space for every three (3) seats in the chapel plus space for each funeral 


vehicle. 


 


(18) Furniture, Appliance, or Carpet Sales: 
 


One (1) space for every 500 square feet of showroom, plus one (1) space per 750 


square feet of indoor storage space. 


 


(19) Gas Station 
 


No parking spaces are required for gas pump uses.  All other uses on the site must 


meet the requirements for retail, service, and repair etc. 


 


(20) Gas and Fuel, Wholesale: 
 


One (1) space for every 250 square feet. 


 


(21) Golf Course: 
 


Two (2) spaces for every hole and one (1) space for every two (2) employees, plus 


requirements for any other use associated with the golf course. 


 


(22) Greenhouse or Nursery, Retail: 
 


One (1) space for every 10,000 square feet plus one (1) space for every employee. 


 


(23) Trade School, College, or University: 
 


One (1) space for every two (2) students, one (1) space for every 300 square feet 


of administrative and educational office space, plus safe and convenient loading 


of students, plus additional spaces for stadium, gymnasium, and auditorium uses. 


 


(24) Hospital: 
 


One and one-half (1.5) spaces for every two (2) beds plus one (1) space for every 


employee. 


 


(25) Hotel: 
 


One (1) space for every guest room plus one (1) space for every two (2) 


employees on the largest shift. 







(26) Industrial Facility,  Manufacturing or Processing Establishment: 
 


One (1) space for every 1,000 square feet of gross floor area, plus one (1) space 


for every employee. 


 


(27) Kennel, Commercial: 
 


One (1) space for every 300 square feet of cage and retail area. 


 


(28) Kindergarten, Nursery School, or Day Care Center: 
 


One (1) space for every employee, plus a covered, safe, and convenient transient 


parking area for the loading/unloading of students. 


 


(29) Manufactured Home Park: 
 


Two (2) spaces for every manufactured home. 


 


(30) Medical or Dental Office: 
 


One (1) space for every employee, plus one (1) space for every examining room. 


 


(31) Motel: 
 


One (1) space for every guest room. 


 


(32) Movie Theater: 
 


One (1) space for every five (5) seats. 


 


(33) Moving and Storage: 
 


One (1) space for every 10,000 square feet of gross floor area, plus one (1) space 


for every employee. 


 


(34) Museum, Art Gallery, Library, or Similar Use: 
 


One (1) space for every 400 square feet of gross space to which the public has 


access. 


 


(35) Office, Business or Professional, Bank, or Similar Use: 
 


One (1) space for every 300 square feet of gross floor area. 


 


(36) Residence: 
 


Two (2) spaces for every dwelling unit (residential driveways can satisfy this 


need). 


 


 


(37) Personal Service Establishment: 
 







One (1) space for every 300 square feet of gross floor area, but not less than two 


(2) spaces for every employee/operator. 


 


(38) Printing and Copying Services: 
 


One (1) space for every 250 square feet of gross floor area. 


 


(39) Repair Services, Limited (Small Items): 
 


One (1) space for every 250 square feet of gross floor area. 


 


(40) Restaurant or Place Dispensing Food, Drink or Refreshments: 
 


One (1) space for every two seats provided for patron use. 


 


(41) Retail Stores of all types not mentioned otherwise: 
 


One (1) space for every 300 square feet of gross floor area 


 


(42) School, Elementary and Middle: 
 


One (1) space for every employee, and one (1) space for every classroom, plus 


safe and convenient area for loading and unloading of students. 


 


(43) School, High: 
 


One (1) space for every two (2) students, plus one (1) space every employee. 


 


(44) Self Service Storage Facility: 
 


One (1) space for every 75 storage bays plus one (1) space for every employee, 


plus two (2) customer spaces. 


 


(45) Shopping Center: 
 


  One (1) space for every300 square feet of gross floor area. 


 


(46) Stable, Commercial: 
 


One (1) space for every 300 square feet within stable, plus one (1) space per three 


(3) animal stalls. 


 


(47) Swimming Pool, Public: 
 


One (1) space for every 200 square feet of water surface area plus requirements 


for additional uses in association with establishments such as a restaurant, etc. 


 


(48) Upholstery Shop: 
 


One (1) space for every 250 square feet of gross floor area. 


 


(49) Vehicle Sales and Rental: 







 


One (1) space for every 500 square feet of enclosed area, plus one (1) space for 


every 5,000 square feet of outdoor sales, rental, and display area, plus one (1) 


space for every service bay, plus one (1) space for every employee. 


 


(50) Veterinarian Office or Clinic: 
 


One (1) space for every employee plus one (1) space for every 500 square feet of 


gross floor area. 


 


(51) Warehouse and Bulk Storage Facility: 
 


One (1) space for every 2,000 square feet of gross floor area, plus one (1) space 


for every employee. 


 


(52) Wholesale, or Open Yard Establishment: 
 


One (1) space for each employee, one (1) space for every 2,000 square feet of 


gross floor area, and one (1) space for every company vehicle to be stored on the 


site. 


 


(53) Woodworking or Cabinetmaking: 
 


One (1) space for every 250 square feet of gross floor area. 


 


 







 


 


1 


STATE OF GEORGIA 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 


 ORDINANCE NO.  2015 - 01 


 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FAYETTE COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, 


CHAPTER 104 - DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS, AS AMENDED, SPECIFICALLY 


ARTICLE VIII. OFF-STREET PARKING AND SERVICE REQUIREMENTS; TO PROVIDE 


FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING LAWS, ORDINANCES, AND 


RESOLUTIONS; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 


ALLOWED BY LAW. 


  


 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of 


Commissioners thereof; 


 


 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides for the 


regulation of land development as allowed by the State of Georgia; 


 


 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, Georgia shall 


be improved and protected by adoption and implementation of this Ordinance. 


 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY 


AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 


 


Section 1. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 104 - Development Regulations, as 


amended, specifically Article VIII. Off-Street Parking and Service Requirements, as amended, is 


hereby further amended by adding Sec. 104-221, in its entirety to read as follows: 


 


Sec. 104-221.  Number of Parking Spaces.  In order to assure a proper and uniform development of 


public parking areas throughout the area of jurisdiction of this Ordinance, to relieve traffic congestion on 


the streets, and to minimize any detrimental effects on adjacent properties, off-street parking spaces shall 


be provided and maintained as called for in the following schedule; the requirements shall be the same as 


a similar use as mentioned herein.  Parking requirements for additions to existing uses shall be based 


upon the new addition even if the existing use is deficient. 


 


 
(1) Duplex or Multi-Family Dwelling 


 


Three (3) spaces for each dwelling unit, plus any required spaces for recreation areas, 


sales office, etc. as required by the Zoning Ordinance. 


 


 (2) Assembly, Public (including Auditorium and Stage Theater): 


 


  One (1) space for every 200 square feet in the main assembly room. 


 


(3) Athletic Field: 


 


One (1) space for every four (4) bleacher seats or thirty (30) spaces per field, whichever 


is greater. 


 


 


Exhibit B- Final FormExhibit B- Final FormExhibit B- Final FormExhibit B- Final FormExhibit B- Final Form







 


 


2 


(4) Automobile Sales and Repairs:  


 


Three (3) spaces for every service area within the garage, or one (1) space for every 


service employee, whichever is greater. 


 


(5) Bowling Alley: 


 


Four (4) spaces per alley, plus requirements for any other use associated with the 


establishment such as a restaurant, etc. 


 


(6) Care Home: 


 


One (1) space for every four (4) beds, plus one (1) space for every employee. 


 


(7) Car Wash (Principal Use): 


 


  One (1) space for every 250 square feet. 


 


(8) Church, Temple, or Place of Worship: 


 


One (1) space for every 150 square feet of occupiable area.   


 


(9) Club or Lodge: 


 


One (1) space for every 200 square feet of assembly area. 


 


(10) Combined Uses: 


 


Parking spaces shall be the total of the spaces required for each separate use established 


by this schedule. 


 


(11) Dance School: 


 


One (1) space for every employee plus one (1) space for every 150 square feet of gross 


floor area, plus safe and convenient loading and unloading of students. 


 


(12) Developed Residential Recreational/Amenity Areas: 


 


a. One (1) space for every 250 square feet of clubhouse, pool house, pavilion, and 


swimming pool water surface area; and 


 


b. Two (2) spaces for every other amenity provided (including but not limited to 


tennis, volleyball, basketball, and playgrounds). 


 


(13) Dry Cleaning/Laundry Plant: 


 


One (1) space for every 10,000 square feet of gross floor area, plus one (1) space for 


every employee. 


 


(14) Entertainment, Indoor (except bowling alleys): 


 


One (1) space for every 250 square feet of floor area devoted to patron use. 


 







 


 


3 


(15) Entertainment, Outdoor: 


 


10 spaces for every acre. 


 


(16) Fraternity or Sorority: 


 


One (1) parking space for every two (2) residents and one (1) space for every two (2) 


employees. 


 


(17) Funeral Parlor: 


 


One (1) space for every three (3) seats in the chapel plus space for each funeral vehicle. 


 


(18) Furniture, Appliance, or Carpet Sales: 


 


One (1) space for every 500 square feet of showroom, plus one (1) space per 750 square 


feet of indoor storage space. 


 


(19) Gas Station 


 


No parking spaces are required for gas pump uses.  All other uses on the site must meet 


the requirements for retail, service, and repair etc. 


 


(20) Gas and Fuel, Wholesale: 


 


One (1) space for every 250 square feet. 


 


(21) Golf Course: 


 


Two (2) spaces for every hole and one (1) space for every two (2) employees, plus 


requirements for any other use associated with the golf course. 


 


(22) Greenhouse or Nursery, Retail: 


 


One (1) space for every 10,000 square feet plus one (1) space for every employee. 


 


(23) Trade School, College, or University: 


 


One (1) space for every two (2) students, one (1) space for every 300 square feet of 


administrative and educational office space, plus safe and convenient loading of students, 


plus additional spaces for stadium, gymnasium, and auditorium uses. 


 


(24) Hospital: 


 


One and one-half (1.5) spaces for every two (2) beds plus one (1) space for every 


employee. 


 


(25) Hotel: 


 


One (1) space for every guest room plus one (1) space for every two (2) employees on the 


largest shift. 







 


 


4 


(26) Industrial Facility,  Manufacturing or Processing Establishment: 


 


One (1) space for every 1,000 square feet of gross floor area, plus one (1) space for every 


employee. 


 


(27) Kennel, Commercial: 


 


One (1) space for every 300 square feet of cage and retail area. 


 


(28) Kindergarten, Nursery School, or Day Care Center: 


 


One (1) space for every employee, plus a covered, safe, and convenient transient parking 


area for the loading/unloading of students. 


 


(29) Manufactured Home Park: 


 


Two (2) spaces for every manufactured home. 


 


(30) Medical or Dental Office: 


 


One (1) space for every employee, plus one (1) space for every examining room. 


 


(31) Motel: 


 


One (1) space for every guest room. 


 


(32) Movie Theater: 


 


One (1) space for every five (5) seats. 


 


(33) Moving and Storage: 


 


One (1) space for every 10,000 square feet of gross floor area, plus one (1) space for 


every employee. 


 


(34) Museum, Art Gallery, Library, or Similar Use: 


 


One (1) space for every 400 square feet of gross space to which the public has access. 


 


(35) Office, Business or Professional, Bank, or Similar Use: 


 


One (1) space for every 300 square feet of gross floor area. 


 


(36) Personal Service Establishment: 


 


One (1) space for every 300 square feet of gross floor area, but not less than two (2) 


spaces for every employee/operator. 


 


(37) Printing and Copying Services: 


 


One (1) space for every 250 square feet of gross floor area. 


 


 







 


 


5 


(38) Repair Services, Limited (Small Items): 


 


One (1) space for every 250 square feet of gross floor area. 


 


(39) Restaurant or Place Dispensing Food, Drink or Refreshments: 


 


One (1) space for every two seats provided for patron use. 


 


(40) Retail Stores of all types not mentioned otherwise: 


 


One (1) space for every 300 square feet of gross floor area 


 


(41) School, Elementary and Middle: 


 


One (1) space for every employee, and one (1) space for every classroom, plus safe and 


convenient area for loading and unloading of students. 


 


(42) School, High: 


 


One (1) space for every two (2) students, plus one (1) space every employee. 


 


(43) Self Service Storage Facility: 


 


One (1) space for every 75 storage bays plus one (1) space for every employee, plus two 


(2) customer spaces. 


 


(44) Shopping Center: 


 


  One (1) space for every300 square feet of gross floor area. 


 


(45) Stable, Commercial: 


 


One (1) space for every 300 square feet within stable, plus one (1) space per three (3) 


animal stalls. 


 


(46) Swimming Pool, Public: 


 


One (1) space for every 200 square feet of water surface area plus requirements for 


additional uses in association with establishments such as a restaurant, etc. 


 


(47) Upholstery Shop: 


 


One (1) space for every 250 square feet of gross floor area. 


 


(48) Vehicle Sales and Rental: 


 


One (1) space for every 500 square feet of enclosed area, plus one (1) space for every 


5,000 square feet of outdoor sales, rental, and display area, plus one (1) space for every 


service bay, plus one (1) space for every employee. 


 


 


 


 







 


 


6 


(49) Veterinarian Office or Clinic: 


 


One (1) space for every employee plus one (1) space for every 500 square feet of gross 


floor area. 


 


(50) Warehouse and Bulk Storage Facility: 


 


One (1) space for every 2,000 square feet of gross floor area, plus one (1) space for every 


employee. 


 


(51) Wholesale, or Open Yard Establishment: 


 


One (1) space for each employee, one (1) space for every 2,000 square feet of gross floor 


area, and one (1) space for every company vehicle to be stored on the site. 


 


(52) Woodworking or Cabinetmaking: 


 


One (1) space for every 250 square feet of gross floor area. 


 


Section 2. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby 


incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 


 


Section 3.  a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all 


Sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their 


enactment, believed by the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and 


constitutional. 


 


b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest 


extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to 


the greatest extent allowed by law, no Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Article is mutually dependent upon any other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of 


this Article. 


 


c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any 


reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid 


judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board of 


Commissioners that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest 


extent allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the 


remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to the 


greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and Sections 


of the Article shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 


 


Section 4.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict 


herewith are hereby expressly repealed except those provided for herein. 


 


Section 5.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise 


specified herein. 


 


 


 


 







 


 


7 


 So ordained this 22nd day of January, 2015, by the  


 


      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


      FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


 


 


      ____________________________ 


      STEVE BROWN, CHAIRMAN 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


 


_________________________ 


CLERK/DEPUTY CLERK 


 


 


 


 


 





		Planning and Zoning- Parking Spaces Agenda Reqeust File

		Planning and Zoning- Parking Spaces Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Planning and Zoning Director Pete Frisina


Public Hearing of Petition No. 1242-14, Earl W. Johnson, Owner, Rick Sewell, Agent, request to rezone 8.18 acres from A-R to R-70 to 


develop a Single-Family Residential Subdivision, with said property being located in Land Lot 254 of the 5th District and fronting on South 


Kite Lake Road, with one (1) condition.


Applicant proposes to develop a Single-Family Residential Subdivision consisting of two (2) lots on 8.18 acres. 


 


Staff recommends approval of rezoning Petition 1242-14 with one (1) Condition. 


 


The Planning Commission recommends approval of rezoning Petition 1242-14 with one (1) Condition. 


 


The owner/developer shall provide, at no cost to Fayette County, a quit-claim deed for 40 feet of right-of-way as measured from the 


centerline of S. Kite Lake Road prior to the approval of the Minor Subdivision Plat and said dedication area shall be shown on the Minor  


Subdivision Plat.  


 


Chairman Gilbert made a motion to approve the petition with one (1) condition. Jim Graw seconded the motion. The motion passed 3-0. 


Brian Haren was absent.  (It is noted that there are currently only four members seated on the Planning Commission.)


Public Hearing of Petition No. 1242-14, Earl W. Johnson, Owner, Rick Sewell, Agent, request to rezone 8.18 acres from A-R to R-70 to 


develop a Single-Family Residential Subdivision, with said property being located in Land Lot 254 of the 5th District and fronting on South 


Kite Lake Road, with one (1) condition, with one (1) condition.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, January 22, 2015 Public Hearing



fjones

Typewritten Text

Public Hearing #5







STAFF AND THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND 


APPROVAL OF THIS REQUEST WITH ONE (1) CONDITION: 


 


1. The owner/developer shall provide, at no cost to Fayette 


County, a quit-claim deed for 40 feet of right-of-way as 


measured from the center of South Kite Lake Road prior to 


the approval of the Minor Subdivision Plat, and said 


dedication area shall be shown on the Minor Subdivision 


Plat.  (This condition is to ensure the provision of adequate 


right-of-way for future road improvements.) 













































































		Planning and Zoning- Rezoning 1242-14 Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Rezoning 1242-14 Backup

		1

		Planning and Zoning- Rezoning 1242-14 Backup












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Water System Water System Director Lee Pope


Consideration of staff's recommendation to award Bid #922- Lake Peachtree Dredging, to low-bidder Massana Construction, Inc., in the 


amount of $1,449,140.00, and to authorize the Chairman to sign any associated documents related to this request.


An intergovernmental agreement exists between Fayette County and the City of Peachtree City, whereby the two jurisdictions can share 


the water in Lake Peachtree.  It is time now to dredge the lake, as must be done periodically. 


 


CH2M Hill, as Water System Engineer of Record, and the Purchasing Department worked together to issue Invitation to Bid #922 to 


solicit price bids for the dredging.  Notices of the opportunity were direct-mailed to 17 vendors.  Another 77 vendors were contacted 


through the web-based Georgia Procurement Registry.  Additionally, invitations were extended via Fayette News, the county website, 


Georgia Local Government Access Marketplace, and Channel 23.  County staff and CH2M Hill held a pre-bid conference on December 


18, 2014.  Representatives from 11 companies attended.  Three companies submitted bids by the bid-opening date of January 8, 2015 


(see Exhibit A).  Massana Construction, Inc. submitted the low bid.  (See Exhibit B- CH2M Hill Recommendation.) 


 


The portion of work that the county is responsible for is included in the base bid of $1,449,410.00.  The alternate bids for (1) accessing, 


cutting, removal of vegetation, and (2) sitework, excavation, and hauling are work being considered by the City of Peachtree City.  The 


Water System and Purchasing Department recommend awarding of the contract to the low-bidder, Massana Construction, Inc.  


Approval of staff's recommendation to award Bid #922- Lake Peachtree Dredging, to low-bidder Massana Construction, Inc., in the 


amount of $1,449,140.00, and to authorize the Chairman to sign any associated documents related to this request.


Funds in the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) in the amount of $901,789 have been designated for this project.  The balance of 


$547,351 will be paid from the Water System's Renewals and Extension (R&E) account.


No


No Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


This request is the result of on-going cooperation between Fayette County and Peachtree City for the betterment of all citizens of Fayette 


County.


New BusinessThursday, January 22, 2015



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #10







 


 


To:  


 


From:  


 


Date:  


 


Subject: 


 


An intergo


whereby t


as must b


 


CH2M Hil


issue Invit


direct!ma


Registry.  


Governme


 


County st


companie


 


Three com


bids are s


low bid. 


 


The portio


alternate 


excavatio


 


The Wate


The Purch


Pool (LGIP


will be pa


Steve 


Ted L. 


Januar


Invitat


overnmental 


the two jurisd


e done perio


l, as Water Sy


tation to Bid #


ailed to 17 ven


In addition, i


ent Access M


aff and CH2M


es attended. 


mpanies subm


hown on bac


on of work th


bids for (1) a


n and hauling


er System reco


hasing Depart


P) in the amo


id from the W


Rapson 


Burgess 


ry 22, 2015 


tion to Bid #9


agreement e


dictions can s


dically. 


ystem Engine


#922 to solici


ndors.  Anoth


nvitations we


arketplace (w


M Hill held a p


mitted bids by


kup included


hat the county


ccessing, cutt


g are work be


ommends aw


tment suppor


unt of $901,7


Water System


22: Lake Peac


exists betwee


share the wat


er of Record,


it price bids fo


her 77 were c


ere extended 


www.glga.org


pre!bid confer


y the bid!ope


 in the agend


y is responsib


ting, removal


eing considere


ward of the co


rts the recom


789 have bee


m’s Renewals a


chtree Dredg


n Fayette Cou


ter in Lake Pe


, and the Purc


or the dredgi


ontacted thro


via the Fayet


g), and Chann


rence on Dec


ning date of J


da request.  M


ble for is inclu


l, and disposa


ed by Peachtr


ontract to the


mmendation.  


n designated


and Extension


ing 


unty and the 


eachtree.  It is


chasing Depa


ng.  Notices o


ough the web


tte News, the


nel 23. 


cember 18, 20


January 8, 20


Massana Cons


uded in the ba


al of vegetatio


ree City. 


e low bidder, 


Funds in the 


 for this purp


ns (R&E) acco


City of Peach


s time now to


rtment work


of the opport


b!based Geor


e county webs


014.  Represe


015.  The com


struction, Inc.


ase bid of $1,


on, and (2) sit


Massana Con


Local Govern


pose.  The bal


ount. 


htree City, 


o dredge the l


ed together t


tunity to be w


rgia Procurem


site, Georgia 


entatives of 1


panies and th


 submitted th


449,140.  The


tework, 


nstruction, Inc


nment Investm


ance of $547


ake, 


to 


were 


ment 


Local 


1 


heir 


he 


e 


c.  


ment 


7,351 







ITEM 


NO.: DESCRIPTION


EST. 


QTY UOM


UNIT 


PRICE EXT. PRICE


UNIT 


PRICE EXT. PRICE


UNIT 


PRICE EXT. PRICE


1. ZONE 1 10 ACRES $2,500.00 $25,000.00 $20,000.00 $200,000.00 $1,000.00 $10,000.00


2. ZONE 2 24 ACRES $2,500.00 $60,000.00 $20,000.00 $480,000.00 $1,000.00 $24,000.00


3. ZONE 3 1 ACRES $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00


4. ZONE 4 9 ACRES $2,500.00 $22,500.00 $20,000.00 $180,000.00 $1,000.00 $9,000.00


5.


ZONE 1 (RANGE 1,500 - 


4,000 CY) 2,800 CY $35.00 $98,000.00 $25.00 $70,000.00 $25.00 $70,000.00


6.


ZONE 2 (RANGE 3,800 - 


7,800 CY) 5,700 CY $40.00 $228,000.00 $25.00 $142,500.00 $25.00 $142,500.00


7.


ZONE 3 (RANGE 200 - 


800 CY) 600 CY $40.00 $24,000.00 $50.00 $30,000.00 $25.00 $15,000.00


8.


ZONE 4 (RANGE 5,000 - 


9,000 CY) 7,600 CY $43.00 $326,800.00 $25.00 $190,000.00 $25.00 $190,000.00


9.


ZONE 5 (RANGE 600 - 


1,300 CY) 900 CY $50.00 $45,000.00 $50.00 $45,000.00 $25.00 $22,500.00


10.


ZONE 6 (RANGE 1,800 - 


2,800 CY) 2,500 CY $50.00 $125,000.00 $50.00 $125,000.00 $25.00 $62,500.00


11.


ZONE 4 SNAKE 


ISLAND REMOVAL TO 


APPROX. 4 FT BELOW 


NORMAL POOL 


ELEVATION. 98,000 CY $32.00 $3,136,000.00 $25.00 $2,450,000.00 $25.00 $2,450,000.00


ACCESSING, CUTTING, REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL OF ALL VEGETATION IN NOT REMOVED BY BASE BID CONTRACT AS 


SHOWN ON ATTACHMENT A.


SITEWORK EXCAVATION AND HAULING EXCAVATION OFFSITE FOR AREAS SHOWN IN RED ON ATTACHMENT A.


WATERFRONT 


PROPERTY SERVICES, 


LLC DBA GATOR 


DREDGING


$3,755,087.00 $1,449,140.00 $3,679,920.00


5.4.3 ALTERNATIVE BID


RESPONDERS NAME:


BID NUMBER & NAME: #922 LAKE PEACHTREE DREDGING _      OPEN: 3:00PM, THURSDAY, JANUARY 8, 2015    


BRENT SCARBROUGH & 


CO., INC.


MASSANA 


CONSTRUCTION INC.


5.3.2 BASE BID


Exhibit AExhibit AExhibit A







CH2M HILL 


6600 Peachtree Dunwoody Road


Embassy Row 400, Suite 600


Atlanta, GA 30328


Tel (770) 604-9095


 


 


January 15, 2015 


 


Lee Pope, Director 


Fayette County Water System 


245 McDonough Road 


Fayetteville, Georgia 30214 


 


Subject: Bid #922 Lake Peachtree Dredging  


Recommendation of Award 


 


Bid Summary 


CH2M HILL prepared the bid documents, oversaw the Invitation to Bid, attended the bid opening, and has 


reviewed the bid packages submitted for BID #922, LAKE PEACHTREE DREDGING. The project bid documents 


were posted on Fayette County’s website (procurement page), and announced through five separate means, 


including: 


 Fayette County Vendor List – sending notices directly to all approved vendors, 


 TV 23 local television, 


 Fayette News newspaper, 


 GLGA Marketplace – Georgia local government registry of items for bi, 


 Georgia Procurement Registry – State-managed vendor list. 


Construction bids were received on January 8, 2015. Three contractors submitted bids for this project. Each 


contractor submitted bids that complied with the bid document requirements. The total base bid for each 


contractor is provided in Table 1: 


TABLE 1 


Summary of Bids 


Bid #922 Lake Peachtree Dredging 


Contractor Base Bid 


Waterfront Property Services, LLC dba Gator Dredging $ 3,679,920.00 


Massana Construction Inc. $ 1,449,140.00 


Brent Scarbrough & Co., Inc.  $ 3,755,087.00  


 


A summary of the bids and required documentation is attached as Table 2. The submitted bid schedule with 


unit prices is attached as Table 3. 


Project References 


Massana Construction, Inc. (MASSANA) has worked for Fayette County Water System (FAYETTE) in the 


previous Lake Peachtree dredging project (in early 2000’s). In addition, Massana has worked with Fayette on 


previous project including Lake Kedron dock, Kenwood Park construction, and Horton Creek Park trails and 


BID#922 LAKE PEACHTREE DREDGING - RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD 


Exhibit BExhibit BExhibit B







BID #922 LAKE PEACHTREE DREDGING  
RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD 
PAGE 2 
JANUARY 15, 2015 


fencing. Massana has worked with Peachtree City at the airport and the City of Fayetteville transportation 


improvements. Massana included eleven (11) letters of reference in the bid package.  


Given Massana’s local presence (office in Tyrone), previous work experience with Fayette as well as other 


local municipalities, and the letters of reference, CH2M HILL anticipates that Massana is fully-qualified and 


recommended for this construction project.  


Administrative Requirements 


CH2M HILL has reviewed Massana’s bid package and confirmed that they have submitted all documents 


required for a complete bid. A Performance bond, payment bond, and Georgia Security Immigration 


Compliance Act affidavit from Shockley will be required prior to contract execution.  


Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America (NAIC #31194) was the bid bond surety company; it is 


assumed that they will provide the performance and payment bonds for this project. They are listed in the 


current U.S. Department of Treasure Circular 570, and are shown as being licensed in the State of Georgia 


with an underwriting limitation of $54,976,000, an amount greater than the bond amount. CH2M HILL does 


not make any representation as to the solvency of this surety company; however, its inclusion in this circular 


indicates that they are acceptable as surety on Federal Bonds.  


The bid did not take any exceptions to the contract documents. 


Recommendation of Award 


Based upon a review of the bid packages, CH2M HILL recommends that Fayette award the contract to 


Massana based upon a BASE BID of $1,449,140.00. This is a unit-price contract; the total contract amount 


will be based upon the amount of work authorized by Fayette and performed by Massana during the project 


construction.  


 


Respectfully, 


CH2M HILL 


 


 


Alan Bowling, PE 


Project Manager 


 


Attachment: Table 1: Bid Evaluation 


  Table 2: Bid Costs 


Digitally signed by Alan Bowling, 


PE 


DN: cn=Alan Bowling, PE, o=CH2M 


HILL, Inc, ou, 


email=alan.bowling@ch2m.com, 


c=US 


Date: 2015.01.15 13:45:13 -05'00'







A
T


L
 O


ff
ic


e


6
6
0
0
 P


e
a
c
h
tr


e
e
 D


u
n
w


o
o
d
y
 R


o
a
d


E
m


b
a
s
s
y
 R


o
w


 4
0
0
, 


S
u
it
e
 6


0
0


A
tl
a
n
ta


, 
G


e
o
rg


ia
 3


0
3
2
8


(7
7
0
) 


6
0
4
-9


0
9
5


B
id


#
9
2
2
 L


a
k
e
 P


e
a
c
h
tr


e
e
 D


re
d
g
in


g
 -


 B
id


 E
v
a
lu


a
ti
o
n


T
a
b
le


 2
 S


u
m


m
a
ry


P
a
g
e
 3


 


P
ri
n
te


d
: 


1
/1


4
/2


0
1
5


B
id


d
e


r
C


o
n


ta
ct


 N
a


m
e


S
u


b
m


it
 B


id
 


b
y


 D
e


a
d


li
n


e


E
n


v
e


lo
p


e
 


S
e


a
le


d
 &


 


A
d


d
re


ss
e


d


S
ig


n
e


d
 b


y
 


C
o


m
p


a
n


y
 


O
ff


ic
e


r
B


id
 S


ch
e


d
u


le


B
a


se
 B


id
 


A
m


o
u


n
t 


a


C
o


n
tr


a
ct


o
r 


A
ff


id
a


v
it


 b


S
ta


te
m


e
n


t 
o


f 


B
id


d
e


r'
s 


Q
u


a
li


fi
ca


ti
o


n
s


G
e


n
e


ra
l 


U
ti


li
ty


 


C
o


n
tr


a
ct


o
r'


s 


Li
ce


n
se


 


C
e


rt
if


ic
a


ti
o


n


G
A


 S
e


cu
ri


ty
 &


 


Im
m


ig
ra


ti
o


n
 


C
o


m
p


li
a


n
ce


 A
ct


 


A
ff


id
a


v
it


s 
c


G
a


t
o


r
 D


r
e


d
g


in
g


W
il


li
a


m
 C


o
u


g
h


li
n


Y
e


s
Y


e
s


Y
e


s
Y


e
s


 $
  
3


,6
7


9
,9


2
0


.0
0


 
Y


e
s


Y
e


s
5
.0


0
%


Y
e


s
Y


e
s


N
o


M
a


s
s
a


n
a


 C
o


n
s
t
r
u


c
t
io


n
M


a
r
k


 M
a


s
s
a


n
a


Y
e


s
Y


e
s


Y
e


s
Y


e
s


 $
  
1


,4
4


9
,1


4
0


.0
0


 
Y


e
s


Y
e


s
5
.0


0
%


Y
e


s
Y


e
s


N
o


B
r
e


n
t
 S


c
a


r
b


r
o


u
g


h
B


r
e


n
t
 S


c
a


r
b


r
o


u
g


h
Y


e
s


Y
e


s
Y


e
s


Y
e


s
 $


  
3


,7
5


5
,0


8
7


.0
0


 
Y


e
s


Y
e


s
5
.0


0
%


Y
e


s
Y


e
s


N
o


T
A


B
L
E


 2


B
id


 E
v


a
lu


a
ti


o
n


B
id


 #
9


2
2


 L
a


k
e


 P
e


a
ch


tr
e


e
 D


re
d


g
in


g


B
id


 B
o


n
d


N
o


te
s:


 
a
 S


e
e


 T
a


b
le


 3
 f


o
r
 U


n
it


 C
o


s
t
s


b
 C


o
n


t
r
a


c
t
o


r
 A


ff
id


a
v
it


 -
 r


e
q


u
ir


e
d


 b
y
 P


u
r
c
h


a
s
in


g
 D


e
p


a
r
t
m


e
n


t
 p


r
io


r
 t


o
 C


o
n


t
r
a


c
t
 e


x
e


c
u


t
io


n


c
 G


A
 S


e
c
u


r
in


g
 I


m
m


ig
r
a


t
io


n
 C


o
m


p
li
a


n
c
e


 A
c
t
 A


ff
id


a
v
it


 -
 r


e
q


u
ir


e
d


 b
y
 P


u
r
c
h


a
s
in


g
 D


e
p


a
r
t
m


e
n


t
 p


r
io


r
 t


o
 C


o
n


t
r
a


c
t
 e


x
e


c
u


t
io


n







ATL Office


6600 Peachtree Dunwoody Road,


Embassy Row 400, Suite 600


Atlanta, GA 30328


(770) 604-9095


Bid#922 Lake Peachtree Dredging - Bid Evaluation


Table 3 Bid Summary


Page 4 


Printed: 1/14/2015


Base Bid 3,679,920.00$    Base Bid 1,449,140.00$    Base Bid 3,755,087.00$    


Item 


No.
Description


Estimated 


Quantity
Unit  Bid Unit Price 


 Extended Bid 


Unit Price 
 Bid Unit Price 


 Extended Bid 


Unit Price 
 Bid Unit Price 


 Extended Bid 


Unit Price 


GENE


1 Mobilization & Demobilization 1 L.S.  $      128,600.00  $      128,600.00  $        40,000.00  $        40,000.00  $      365,000.00  $      365,000.00 


2 Project Signs 1 each  $             350.00  $             350.00  $          1,500.00  $          1,500.00  $          1,500.00  $          1,500.00 


3 Traffic Control 1 L.S.  $        50,000.00  $        50,000.00  $        10,000.00  $        10,000.00  $        42,500.00  $        42,500.00 


4
Clearing, Grubbing and Bushhogging, within Limits of 


Disturbance
48 acres  $          1,000.00  $        48,000.00  $               40.00  $          1,920.00  $             500.00  $        24,000.00 


5 Sitework Excavation 64,000 C.Y.  $               25.00  $   1,600,000.00  $                 8.00  $      512,000.00  $               25.00  $   1,600,000.00 


6 Hauling Excavation Offsite 64,000 C.Y.  $               18.00  $   1,152,000.00  $                 7.00  $      448,000.00  $               13.38  $      856,320.00 


Haul Road, including geotextile underlayment


(stone TBD by Contractor)


8 Temp Fencing at Picnic Park 250 L.F.  $               10.00  $          2,500.00  $               20.00  $          5,000.00  $               20.00  $          5,000.00 


9 Install Crape Myrtle (7-8' height) 3 each  $             500.00  $          1,500.00  $             300.00  $             900.00  $             500.00  $          1,500.00 


10 Cart Path Repair (in-kind) 1 each  $          7,500.00  $          7,500.00  $          2,000.00  $          2,000.00  $          7,500.00  $          7,500.00 


11 18" CMP at S.R. 54 road access 1 each  $          2,000.00  $          2,000.00  $          1,500.00  $          1,500.00  $          2,800.00  $          2,800.00 


Fence: plastic picket (est. 100 l.f.)


(remove, store, and reinstall upon project completion)


13
Drake Field: repair staging area to original conditions, 


including removal of stone
1 L.S.  $          2,000.00  $          2,000.00  $          6,000.00  $          6,000.00  $        58,295.00  $        58,295.00 


14 NPDES Inspections 1 L.S.  $        30,000.00  $        30,000.00  $          2,000.00  $          2,000.00  $          3,850.00  $          3,850.00 


15 Concrete Washdown 1 each  $          5,000.00  $          5,000.00  $        12,000.00  $        12,000.00  $          3,500.00  $          3,500.00 


16 Co - Construction Exit 1 each  $          5,000.00  $          5,000.00  $          2,000.00  $          2,000.00  $          8,000.00  $          8,000.00 


17 Fence, orange tree save 8,260 L.F.  $                 1.00  $          8,260.00  $                 1.00  $          8,260.00  $                 2.00  $        16,520.00 


18 Ch - Riprap, type 3 stone 74 C.Y.  $               65.00  $          4,810.00  $             100.00  $          7,400.00  $               55.00  $          4,070.00 


19.
Sd1-S - belted silted fence, CPOP or equivalent 26,560 L.F.  $                 2.50  $        66,400.00  $                 1.00  $        26,560.00  $                 4.50  $      119,520.00 


20.
DS1 - straw mulch 6,400 bales  $                 6.00  $        38,400.00  $                 4.00  $        25,600.00  $               13.00  $        83,200.00 


21.
DS2 - temporary seeding, hydroseed 48 acres  $          1,000.00  $        48,000.00  $             100.00  $          4,800.00  $             500.00  $        24,000.00 


22.
DS3 - permanent seeding, hydroseed 5 acres  $          1,500.00  $          7,500.00  $             500.00  $          2,500.00  $          1,600.00  $          8,000.00 


23.
DS4 - Sodding 2.8 acres  $        30,000.00  $        84,000.00  $        10,000.00  $        28,000.00  $        26,000.00  $        72,800.00 


24.
Sr - temp stream crossing 6 each  $          2,000.00  $        12,000.00  $          2,000.00  $        12,000.00  $          6,000.00  $        36,000.00 


25.
Tc - turbidity curtain 1 each  $             500.00  $             500.00  $          2,000.00  $          2,000.00  $        12,000.00  $        12,000.00 


26.
Straw mulch bales 100 each  $                 7.00  $             700.00  $                 4.00  $             400.00  $               13.00  $          1,300.00 


27.
Mb - matting blanket (material: jute straw) 10,000 S.F.  $                 0.25  $          2,500.00  $                 0.25  $          2,500.00  $                 0.18  $          1,800.00 


28.
Bushhog 10 acres  $             500.00  $          5,000.00  $               40.00  $             400.00  $          1,500.00  $        15,000.00 


29 No. 3 Stone (including hand or machine placement) 50 ton  $             150.00  $          7,500.00  $             100.00  $          5,000.00  $               50.00  $          2,500.00 


30 No. 57 Stone (including hand or machine placement) 10 ton  $             150.00  $          1,500.00  $             100.00  $          1,000.00  $               50.00  $             500.00 


31.
Asphalt patching/parking lot repair (in-kind) 200 S.Y.  $               30.00  $          6,000.00  $               50.00  $        10,000.00  $               60.00  $        12,000.00 


32.
Concrete Curb Repair (in-kind) 80 L.F.  $               30.00  $          2,400.00  $               30.00  $          2,400.00  $               28.00  $          2,240.00 


33.
Area 5 - Sitework Excavation, below water line 1,500 C.Y.  $               15.00  $        22,500.00  $               20.00  $        30,000.00  $               30.00  $        45,000.00 


34.
Area 5 - Sitework Excavation, above water line 2,000 C.Y.  $               15.00  $        30,000.00  $               13.00  $        26,000.00  $               25.00  $        50,000.00 


35.
Area 5 - Hauling Excess Offsite 3,500 C.Y.  $               17.00  $        59,500.00  $                 7.00  $        24,500.00  $               13.38  $        46,830.00 


36.
Owner-required Services 1 -  $        40,000.00  $        40,000.00  $        40,000.00  $        40,000.00  $        40,000.00  $        40,000.00 


37.
City of Peachtree City Traffic Control Officer 1 -  $        40,000.00  $        40,000.00  $        40,000.00  $        40,000.00  $        40,000.00  $        40,000.00 


 Brent Scarbrough 


 $               53.67  $      139,542.00 


 $          2,500.00  $          2,500.00 


 Massana Construction 


 $               40.00  $      104,000.00 


 $          1,000.00  $          1,000.00 


EROSION, SEDIMENTATION AND POLLUTION CONTROL


ENGINEERING DIRECTED WORK


CASH ALLOWANCES


7 2,600 ton


12 1 L.S.


 $               60.00 


 $          2,000.00 


Base Bid Unit Price Bid Schedule


SITE WORK


 $      156,000.00 


 $          2,000.00 


TABLE 3


Bid Schedule


Bid #922 Lake Peachtree Dredging


 Gator Dredging 





		Water System- Lake Peachtree Dredging Agenda Request File

		Water System- Lake Peachtree Dredging Backup

		Water System- Lake Peachtree Dredging Backup

		3- 2- Bid#922 Lake Peachtree Dredging - Recommendation of Award









